WILLOWSFORD CONSERVANCY Meeting of the Board of Trustees

September 15, 2020, 5:00 pm

MEETING MINUTES

Attendees: Board Trustees: Mark Trostle, Rick DiBella, Claudette Papathanasopoulos, Greg Licamele, Avi Sareen, Mary Hegedus, and Chase Rowan. HOA Board: Harry Pugh and Frank Blackstone Conservancy Staff: Iris Gestram, Taryn McFarland, Jamie McArdle, Ashley Swensen and Collin Thompson.

I. Call to Order

Meeting was called to order at 5:01pm

II. Approval of Agenda

Motion to approve agenda passed without dissent.

III. Approval of Minutes [attachment]

Motion to approve minutes from June 9th meeting passed without dissent.

IV. New Business

Boat House Conservancy Office

The Boat House is scheduled to become the Conservancy office next year. The Willowsford marketing team is still scheduled to turn the Boat House over to the Conservancy after Christmas. Iris has done two walkthroughs of the building, one with the marketing team and one with the HOA and has also gone through a building inspection. A few items are being addressed to make it move-in ready. The marketing team is leaving the building substantially intact in terms of the office furniture and decorations. A few minor adjustments are being made to make it function as an office. No major expenditures are expected. A few items must be purchased, and they were included in the 2020 budget. The biggest expenditures are a copy machine and moving the Conservancy server from the existing office.

The Conservancy received a draft lease agreement today. The lease will be discussed at next Thursday's HOA board meeting. Iris will circulate the lease to trustees for comment. The HOA is proposing a 25-year lease at \$1/year. The Conservancy will be responsible for all maintenance while occupying the building. HOA is undergoing a reserve study that covers the Boat House. The Conservancy will budget to pay into the reserve study for the Boat House's bigger budget items.

Conservancy is likely to move into the building in early January.

Willowsford Design Standards [attachment]

Resident trustees are proposing changes to the Willowsford Design Standards in order to make them better align with the Conservancy's Mission and integrate conservation principles. The proposal is meant to enhance the Design Standards with additional language to give more options and information to residents. Specifically, the new language aims to

encourage and allow (but not require) residents to make design decisions that are beneficial to native wildlife.

Resident trustees will seek input from the HOA board, the Design Review Committee and residents.

Iris will look for guidance from both the HOA and Conservancy boards on how to best provide input.

It was suggested that the additional language include information on recommended lawn care practices and substances to avoid.

It was suggested that the resident trustees consider enforceability of new standards and to think through different ways of presenting the information to residents, i.e. whether the Design Standards or outreach or other means are most appropriate.

2021 Budget Planning

The Conservancy is planning to have the 2021 budget ready by the November board meeting. The Finance Committee is scheduled to review a draft budget on October 20.

The Conservancy is now entering a new phase where it is fully built out and must now determine the best way to move forward in serving the residents and implementing the Conservancy's mission.

The Conservancy is mindful that residents may have fewer resources in the coming year because of Covid-19. Therefore, the plan is to keep assessments near the same as 2020. The Conservancy does not plan any new major initiatives in the coming year, and therefore should be able keep assessments at the same level.

A draft budget can be provided to Harry from the HOA board to review two weeks before the Conservancy board meeting. This will allow the Conservancy to receive initial HOA feedback before the November board meeting.

Rick and Mark see 2020 as the last year they maintain membership on board. They are ready to begin the transition in early 2021. Election for new resident trustees is expected in late Q1 or Q2.

Resident trustees would like to begin a process of setting up a strategic planning exercise for 2021 after the new board members are established. The process would seek to gather insight from community residents on the focus and priorities for the Conservancy in coming years. Trustees are to engage resident club presidents since they are well tied into many varied aspects of the community.

V. Old Business

Dominion Energy Pipeline Upgrade

Taryn met with project manager and environmental consultants. The new pipeline is expected to be completed by the end of October. Dominion plans to finish clean-up and restoration by the end of December. The project has impacted trails somewhat more than expected. The Grant loop was interrupted on the east side where it crosses the pipeline. The other side is expected to experience a similar interruption for a brief time. However, the

rest of the trail remains open. The team is doing a good job trying to mitigate impacts. The Conservancy has not received complaints from residents.

VI. Committee Updates

Finance Committee Report [attachment]

The finance committee has had two recent meetings, on July 21 and August 28.

In May, the Conservancy transitioned bookkeeping to a local accounting firm, KPI, with staff member Jamie McArdle assisting. With Jamie competently and effectively managing the work, the plan is to have Jamie manage the bookkeeping with monthly oversight from a contract accounting firm. The Conservancy is providing Jamie with additional training for this. In addition, the finance committee will continue to work with Conservancy staff to develop and implement internal financial controls. Jamie is based in Colorado and has been working for Willowsford Conservancy since 2018, after working for the HOA and developer since 2014.

Chase requested that a statement of cash flows be added to the financial statements. The board has a fiduciary responsibility, and this includes the quality of financial reporting.

From a resident perspective, the residents look to the Conservancy to maintain the farm and trails, land stewardship and various programs like camping and education. It might be useful to break out expenses and represent them along those lines. This would be more understandable to residents. The Conservancy does track expenses this way and can easily make this change.

The Conservancy is reporting these year-end projections:

- CSA and retail revenue are projected high. This revenue is currently deferred, but we will see high realization of this revenue in coming months.
- Wholesale revenue is going to be below budget, this market collapsed during Covid.
- Program revenue is going to be far below budget because summer camp and the fall community bonfire & camp-over event were canceled due to COVID
- Program expenses will also be below budget.
- Assessments are anticipated to come in slightly above budget. HOA reports that
 delinquency rates are extremely slow despite Covid. Resales are doing better than
 expected, but the reporting is only just over half the year, so this could change.
 Builder fees to date are lower than expected.
- Dominion fee paid to the Conservancy has been put in a separate account to cover any additional work we may incur based on the project.
- There is an increase in tree work that is causing additional expenditures.
- The employee housing is currently generating a net revenue. One large budget item
 is an upgrade to the septic system in one of the older houses. This will come later in
 the year.
- Overall, the Conservancy is expected to come in better than budgeted.

Iris commends Ashley and Collin for being so nimble and quickly adjusting farm operations in response to Covid – there has been a much bigger demand for home delivery and online purchases than expected.

Update on endowment – the developer plans to transfer the Conservancy the \$1M endowment money this week. The Conservancy is excited to have this financial cushion. The members of the Finance Committee, who are serving as the Endowment Directors, decided to place the funds into an account to be invested the next year.

Other – The finance committee approved at its July 21 meeting a resident request to have Conservancy assessments prorated as the HOA does.

VII. Staff Reports

1. Land stewardship (Taryn)

See attached report. In addition, land stewardship will consider putting more trash bins at trailheads to help with trash issues.

2. Farm (Collin)

See attached report. In addition, Collin reported that weather has been an issue this year, and that will not go away – extreme weather will continue, and farmers are having to deal with this more and more. The farm is working to figure out ways to not need to water crops– not necessarily looking for new irrigation options.

The farm has traded in some unused equipment for other equipment needed for farm operations. A couple of additional pieces may be traded in when things on the farm calm down and other farmers have time and money to prepare for next year. Trading can be a better value than selling items. The farm is working to determine best approach.

Mark informed Collin that years ago a retention pond was considered on the north end of the Grange farm. Other things became priorities and the farm did not move forward with the retention pond. The farm might reconsider now. It would provide addition options and could be used for livestock or have other ecological benefits. Mark will share the old materials and bid to excavate the pond, do clay embankment, etc.

The farm has tapped into the volunteer base to lighten the load on farmers. Egg washing has been an especially helpful volunteer position. There is an excellent group of core volunteers coming weekly now.

3. Retail (Ashley)

See attached report.

VIII. Other

Nothing else

IX. Adjourn

The meeting adjourned at 6:43pm.

WILLOWSFORD CONSERVANCY Meeting of the Board of Trustees September 15, 2020, 5:00 pm Conference Call

ED REPORT

Land Stewardship (Taryn McFarland, Land Stewardship Manager)

In the 2020 summer season, the Conservancy has continued full speed in all operations despite COVID-19 limitations. New approaches to educational programing and resident outreach have ensured our continued presence in the community.

<u>Trail Maintenance</u>

- Trails are being mowed bi-weekly as scheduled.
- A significant amount of bridge and trail infrastructure repairs has been completed in accordance with the priorities established in the trail survey reports. New trail signage was also added throughout the villages.
- Trail connectors were built in areas where new homes created a need for residents to access trails more conveniently. Trail shortcuts have been installed to break up long stretches of trails.

Habitat Management

- The Conservancy completed yearly maintenance of all riparian areas to beat back competitive vegetation, to check up on each individual tree, and to remove tree tubes from trees that have either outgrown their tubes or expired. The riparian plantings are establishing successfully.
- Multiple resident volunteer-based reforestation projects are in progress.
- In August, the Conservancy begun a meadow restoration project in The Grant to restore 1.5 acres of fill dirt into a warm season grassland.
- In partnership with Loudoun Wildlife Conservancy, the Conservancy has received grant funding for a riparian planting project in The Grove to take place in October.
- Invasive plant removal continues to be a priority. The Grant and Grange have undergone removal of a large portion of invasive vines to support native trees and shrubs.

Work Orders

- 54 work orders have been completed to date. A considerable number of these were tree work orders, most of which were completed in house with only the highly technical jobs being contracted out. Tree work orders make up an increasing share of work orders throughout the season. With extreme weather conditions and the long-term effects of development, future years will see a continual increase in projected tree work. To prepare for this, the Conservancy team continues to train and pursue education in arboriculture so that much of this work can be done in house.
- Firewood orders continued well into the summer with the majority being returning customers. In preparation for fall, the Conservancy team has restocked the wood supply and firewood operation supplies.

Amenities

- Despite COVID-19 restrictions, the Conservancy produced solutions to provide amenities to residents. Health and safety measures included providing more restroom units that are sanitized between each rental; and limiting rentals to one group at a time to promote social distancing. These efforts have received positive community feedback.
- Amenity rentals included 22 camp nights from May-August (49 in 2019); a Cedar Pond Pavilion Rental in June (1 in 2019), and a weeklong rental of Hidden Meadow for a boy scout summer camp which followed CDC social distancing precautions (no rental in 2019). Total rental income May-August was \$3,548 compared with \$3,589 in 2019. September rentals are looking strong.
- Cedar Pond Pavilion and parking area have experienced increased nighttime traffic by groups of teenagers, causing resident concern. The Conservancy is closely close monitoring the area through security cameras and is working with the LCSO to patrol the area. Speed limit sings were installed to slow down traffic. These measures have significantly improved the situation.

Miscellaneous

- Volunteers are supporting the Conservancy by completing trail clearance, conducting wildlife surveys, aiding in invasive plant removal, etc.
- Volunteers in the deer management program completed over 200 hours removing old board walk and barb wire fencing, replacing a pond overlook, assisting with equipment maintenance, "posting" property, and performing other work.
- Partnering with groups such as Loudoun Wildlife Conservancy has generated volunteer interest from outside of the Willowsford community. Naturalists and conservation enthusiasts are assisting with wildlife monitoring and data collection helping the Conservancy increase environmental monitoring.
- Trash at trailheads and amenities has increased throughout the season.
- Dominion Energy has begun the utility upgrade along the pipeline easement in the Grant. The Conservancy has been in communication with Dominions' Environmental Consultants to ensure preservation of habitat and water quality, as well as planning ahead for the restoration of the area after work has been completed. The Conservancy continues trail monitoring and management during the work so that residents may use intersecting trails as much as possible while it is safe to do so. Dominion expects work to be completed by the end of November.

Willowsford Farm Production (Collin Thompson, Farm Manager)

2020 has been a year of unique successes and challenges. We have seen a substantial increase in overall demand due to uncertainty in the global food system, which has allowed us to increase and sell out of CSA shares in every category.

While this has meant our production needs have grown significantly, the team has done an incredible job of stepping up to the challenge and consistently filling boxes each week. There have been some growing pains but overall, the increase in total shares has been executed without major mishaps.

As we adapt to the ever-evolving marketplace, we have adjusted our focus to better meet demands. As wholesale sales ground to a halt due to a shift in consumers' shopping habits, CSA interest increased. We continue to fine-tune offerings to meet customer

preferences, spending a larger budget portion on sourcing fruit and specialty products to include in the shares, hopefully leading to greater overall customer satisfaction and retention.

Our primary challenge this year has been climatic. Unseasonably warm temperatures in spring caused overwintered crops to break dormancy, but a late freeze killed early tender crops. This delayed production on some spring plantings while others were lost. July was the hottest on record. An extended period of drought and the untimely failure of two of our wells led to reduced yields or failure. We have since been hit with heavy rainstorms which caused some fields to wash away, as water cannot percolate fast enough in our tight soils.

Weather is always a factor in agriculture, though it is getting more extreme. Markets are ever-changing and we need to stay nimble and adapt appropriately, which we have worked hard to accomplish this year. Things like staffing issues or equipment failures arise spontaneously each year and need to be accounted for.

What this year has brought to the front of my mind is resilience. At this point, certain aspects of Willowsford Farm are resilient, others are not. I notice it most in our production systems – the soils are out of balance, which leads to increased disease and pest pressure, reducing marketable yield and stressing our bottom line. This impacts effective task management, crew morale, labor needs, and overall efficiency.

An appropriate emphasis moving forward will be to better build resilience into our production systems to support the changing climate and marketplace. I plan to research options for soil health consultants to offer insights on balancing and improving our soils. We'll rethink our staffing structure to support the operation as it grows and changes. We will work intentionally with the team to identify the right scale and scope of the operation, realizing that growth does not necessarily lead to an improved bottom line.

In summary, 2020 has been a year of great successes and substantial challenges, and I am incredibly thankful for my team's efforts in making sure CSA boxes have been full of quality produce and for being flexible as plans change day to day; and for the support of our customers and the Willowsford community. Willowsford Farm is in good shape right now and I am optimistic for the fall and winter and have plenty of improvements that I am excited to implement in 2021.

Farm Sales & Marketing (Ashley Swensen, Sales and Marketing Manager)

2020 Season CSA Sales & Statistics

	Total	Membership Goal		2019 Shares
Main Veggie Shares:	403	350	115%	300
Family	130			
Personal	196			
Starter	77			
Meat Shares:	70	30	233%	38
Farmers Choice	50			
Chicken	20			
Milk	72	40	180%	48
Fage	204	200	1020/	101
Eggs	204	200	102%	181
Flowers	79	50	158%	47
Total Sales (Gross)	\$380,654	Budget	\$310,741	
			122%	

Past the halfway mark of our 2020 season, the Farm team has absorbed helpful lessons to apply to our business plans for 2021. Most importantly, we have seen that retail sales through our online platform, Farm Stand Online, have the potential to equal sales from the Farm Stand. Based on income to date, and the reduced overhead, staffing and product waste, the farm plans to transition solely to online sales for 2021. We believe the financial viability of the Farm is better served by strengthening marketing and execution for Farm Stand Online and transitioning the physical Farm Stand to a space for CSA and community outreach.

We are very pleased with the additional revenue generated so far this year through both one-time veggie boxes and our curated selection of local food "extras". Our crew's dedication to producing and executing not only a significant increase in CSA shares but also the high numbers of extra boxes each week to online subscribers is commendable.

Winter CSA shares show strong early sales, particularly veggies. The initial "current members only" offering sold 75% of our capacity within 24 hours. This is an excellent indicator for customer satisfaction and future retention! We plan to offer a similar "early bird" campaign for 2021's main CSA season in mid-November.

This winter, the farm will offer restructured "Pastured Meat" shares. To improve customer service and the appeal of our offerings, meat shares will now be personalized through both member preferences and the option to edit share contents before delivery. We will

manage inventory and pack custom meat shares using the same methods as our veggie shares. We anticipated high popularity due to these changes and have already met our sales quota for Winter 2020.

Marketing efforts at this point in the year remain focused on enrolling additional members in our subscriber database and on sales through Farm Stand Online. Farm Stand Online allows us to "right size" CSA to each week's harvest and maximize sales at direct-to-consumer prices. We now have 1,150 Farm Stand subscribers, which is also an excellent customer base of "warm" leads for 2021 sales.

Community engagement opportunities are also steadily increasing as Loudoun County loosens COVID-related restrictions. We have had several successful family volunteer events during bulk harvests and are hosting regular volunteers for egg washing tasks. Our wonderful CSA attendant volunteers John Lilley and Julie Nash have returned to the Farm Stand.

Farmer Collin's YouTube viewership continues to grow. Our first video tutorial, featuring CIA-trained crew member Gabe Concordia, will be filmed in September. We are all excited to reconnect with shareholders in new and more traditional ways.

2020 Winter Season CSA Sales & Statistics

	Total	Membership Goal
Main Veggie Shares:	95	100
Meat Shares (Sold Out)	30	30
Family Size	17	
Personal Size	13	
Milk	21	40
Eggs	72	100

Business Operations

Administration

- Following office bookkeeping changes in April, Business Operations Coordinator Jamie McArdle has been training to handle the Conservancy's bookkeeping needs in-house, eliminating the need for an outside bookkeeping service effective October 1. Jamie continues to also manage communications and resident relations, and support HR and office administration.
- 2020-2021 Insurance Coverage: The Conservancy annually works with its insurance broker to review and negotiate coverage renewal; most policies renew July 1. Total premiums are slightly below 2019-2020 levels despite a substantial increase in Worker's Comp premiums due to the Conservancy's new policy separate from the developer's policy. Workers' Comp premiums will level out as

- the Conservancy continues its own coverage and develops a safety record with the underwriter. For D&O coverage, up for renewal in December, the carrier proposes "automatic renewal" in the absence of material changes in operations.
- The Conservancy received a subpoena for information related to "Paola and Kelly Henandez v. Willowsford Grant, L.L.C. et al." regarding a land parcel in The Grant. The parcel is not Conservancy open space. The Conservancy provided a timely response to the subpoena.

Programs

- To strengthen resident outreach during COVID-19 restrictions, the Conservancy added a Conservancy You Tube Channel to the Farm YouTube channel; created a resident Willowsford Photo Contest, "Nature Lens"; and continued to offer inperson family programs were feasible following COVID-19 safety protocols. These included a sold-out parent-child fishing class in partnership with Trout Unlimited; two "Container Gardening with Native Plants" workshops; family friendly farm volunteer opportunities; and a successful Native Plant Sale supporting the Conservancy's "home habitat" education efforts.
- Five winners were chosen for the summer portion of the Nature Lens photo contest: Bill Corbett, The Grant; Newsha Nazmi, The Grove; Alana Hess, The Grove; Chaitanya Chandra, The Grove; and Abhishek Singh, The Greens.
- Deer Management Program: 26 hunters qualified to participate in the 2020-2021 season which begins Oct 5. Program information is posted on the Conservancy website.

2020 Program Overview (as of September 14):

- TinkerGarten Nature Play Classes, Sundays, Jan 19-Feb 23, 10:30-11:45 am, The Grange (18 participants)
- Community Update Sessions, Wednesday, Feb 19, 6:30-8:00 pm, Sycamore House and Tuesday, Feb. 25, 6:38-8:00 pm, The Lodge (49 registrants)
- Farm Shares 101 CSA Info Sessions (Farm Team); Wednesday, March 11 at Sycamore House and Sunday, March 14 at The Lodge (35 registrants)
- Right Plant Right Place Native Plants for the Home Garden (Julie Borneman, Watermarks Native Plant Nursery), Thursday, April 23, 6:30-8:00 pm, Sycamore House (43 registrants) – Zoom Call
- Feathered Fosters (Ashley Swensen), April 18-25, Grange Farm Stand (100 max sold out)
- Pinewoods Loop Trail Opening Canceled due to COVID-19. The new trail was opened in March.
- CSA Season begins May 25 Nov 15
- Exploring Nature with Your Child, interactive nature walk, June 30, 6:30-8:00 pm, (Kim Strader, Certified Forest Therapy Guide), Cedar Pond Pavilion, (10 registrants)
- Amenity Rental Season Opens: Cedar Pond Pavilion, Grant Family Campsite, June 12-Oct 31, The Greens, The Grant
- Container Gardening with Native Plants, two hands-on Workshops, July 11, 9 am and 10:30 am; The Grange (Sold out 16 attendees)
- Gardens in Public Spaces Site tour with Loudoun Wildlife Conservancy, The Grange Wet Meadow and Native Plant Demonstration Garden, planned for July 25

- Loudoun Wildlife Conservancy filmed Iris Gestram in the Garden and Meadow and published a virtual session.
- Reeling in a Big One, parent-child fishing class with Trout Unlimited, Friday, Sept 11, 6 pm, The Greens (Sold out 30 attendees)
- Native Plant Sale with Watermark Woods Nursery and Loudoun Wildlife Conservancy, Sunday, Sept 13, 9 am 2 pm, The Grange (approx. 375 attendees)
- 6th Annual Community Bonfire & Camp-over, Saturday-Sunday, Sept. 12-13, Hidden Meadow Event Field, The Greens – canceled due to COVID-19.